HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 24, 2014
1:53 p.m

1: 53: 24 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Conmmittee neeting
to order at 1:53 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Al an Austernan, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Mark Neuman, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Guttenberg
Representati ve Lindsey Hol nes
Representati ve Cat hy Minoz
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Captain Steve Arlow, Statew de VPSO Coordinator, Departnent
of Public Safety; Joe Masters, Former  Conm ssi oner,
Departmment of Public Safety; James Hoel scher, Self, Hooper
Bay; Daniel George, Staff, Co-Chair Stoltze; Charles
Qui nchard, staff, Representative Costello; Don Habeger,
Di rector, Di vi si on of Cor por at i ons, Busi ness and
Prof essional Licensing, Departnent of Comrerce, Community
and Econom c Devel opnent .

SUMVARY
HB 32 LI NES OF BUSI NESS ON BUSI NESS LI CENSE

CSHB 32(FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a
"do pass" recomrendation and with one new fiscal

House Fi nance Committee 1 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



impact note by the Departnment of Comerce,
Communi ty and Economi ¢ Devel opnent.

HB 199 VPSO FI REARVS

HB 199 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

#hb199
HOUSE BI LL NO. 199

"An Act relating to Departnment of Public Safety
regul ations allowing village public safety officers to
carry firearns."

1: 53: 39 PM
AT EASE

1:54:10 PM
RECONVENED

1:54: 24 PM

Representati ve Edgnon explained that the bill would insert
| anguage into state statute that would give the D vision of
Public Safety the authority to allow public safety
of ficers, who otherwi se net mninmm standards in training,
to carrying firearns. He assured the commttee that the
training that a Village Protection Safety Oficer (VPSSO
woul d undergo would be identical to that of a nunicipal
police officer or state trooper. He noted that in Sitka,
VPSCs, troopers and police officers would all have the sane
instructor. He offered a brief history of the VPSO program
He stated that the goal of the program had been to provide
VPSCs in all of the rural communities in the state. In the
early 1990s there were 130 active VPSGs in the state. He
shared that the program had faced challenges wth
recruitnment, retention, and placenent. He stated that the
conditions were inproved with the changes including many
capi tal upgrades, but nmany rural conmmunities saw increased
vi ol ence. He discussed the death of a VPSO in March 2013.

1:58: 28 PM

Representative Edgnon introduced the idea of properly
armng VPSOs in environnents where they would be facing a
perpetrator arnmed with a high-powered rifle. He noted that

House Fi nance Committee 2 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



HB 199 brought the conversation into the conmttee
environment. He argued that the time had come to take
action regarding VPSGCs and rural Al aska. He noted fiscal
el enent to properly training the VPSGCs.

2: 00: 51 PM

Co-Chair Stol tze not ed t hat Co-Chair Aust er man and
Representative Gara had joined the commttee.

Vice-Chair Neunman offered concerns regarding the VPSO
firearmtraining. He had heard testinony regardi ng VPSO and
handgun training. He asked about psychological training
that m ght acconpany the firearmtraining. He asked how the
state would address penalties for VPSGCs that discharged a
gun i nappropriately.

Representative Edgnon responded that the training would be
identical to that of state troopers and nunicipal police
officers. He furthered that the training net the Al aska
Police Standards Council training, as well as Alaska Law
Enf or cenent traini ng, requirenments. He remnded the
committee that the program was a pilot program with the
goal of approximately 20 VPSO being successfully recruited
and trained at the acadeny. He that the psychol ogical
evaluation would be identical to that of troopers and
police officers, with a conplete doctor's physical
exam nation, full crimnal background checks both statew de
and through the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

2:05: 17 PM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked whether the same psychol ogical
testing received by an Alaska State Trooper would be
applied to a VPSO He restated his question regarding
m suse of the firearmby a VPSO

Representative Edgnon replied that he did not know the
penalties. He relayed that VPSO s would undergo the Use of
Force Cont i nuum Tr ai ni ng, whi ch trai ned of ficers
brandi shing firearns the necessary techniques for avoiding
the use of deadly force. He said that, according to forner
Departnment of Public Safety commi ssioner Walt Monegan,
i nstances where a weapon had been used for deadly force by
| aw enforcenent officers were rare. He though the
departnment could provide further clarity.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



2:07:25 PM

Representative Costello believed that the issue of msuse
of firearns by VPSO s was inportant and had been brought to
her attention by constituents.

Representati ve Edgnon responded that the inplenentation of
bringing in the armed VPSO s would follow a simlar process
to how current VPSO s were established. He said that the
topic of armng VPSOs had been a significant one for the
peopl e in charge of adm nistering the program

2:09:40 PM

Representative Gara supported the bill and hoped that there
was conmttee support to craft the strongest piece of
| egi sl ati on possible. He wondered where in the bill it was
stated that the trooper acadeny in Sitka would be used for
VPSO firearmtraining.

Representative Edgnon replied that VPSOs were currently
trained at the Alaska State Trooper Acadeny in Sitka, which
he believed had been firmy established for the record.

Representative Gara asked whether VPSO s received the exact
same training as troopers, or was the training different.

Representati ve Edgnon stated that the training to becone a
trooper was nore extensive, obviously; but he understood
that the firearmtraining would be simlar.

2:11: 44 PM

Representative Gara asked how the training between VPSO s
and troopers differed.

Representative Edgnmon deferred the question to the
Department of Public Safety.

2:11:58 PM

Representative Munoz queried the difficulty the departnent
had faced filling VPSO positions.

Represent ati ve Edgnon thought that allowng VPSOs to carry
firearns would nake them feel safer on the job. He believed

House Fi nance Committee 4 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



that if recruits could depend on a certain |level of safety
t hen positions would be easier to fill.

2:14: 37 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze wunderstood that collective bargaining
units had shown interest in the |egislation.

Representati ve Edgnon stated that the primary source of
opposition to the bill had been about the concern for
t horough and conprehensive psychol ogical screening. He
shared that there had been discussion surrounding the
adequacy of the fiscal note to get the job done.

Co-Chair Stoltze hoped that opposition would be expressed
in the conmttee process through open and honest debate.

Representative Edgnon believed that nmeaningful discussion
woul d strengthen the effort.

2:18:18 PM

CAPTAI N STEVE ARLOW STATEW DE VPSO COORDI NATOR, DEPARTMENT
OF PUBLI C SAFETY, responded to Vice-Chair Neuman's question
regarding deadly force. He relayed that often the
Departnment of Public Safety would be tasked with the
investigation of certain agencies. He said that the Al aska
Bureau of Investigations would be brought in and the
situation would be treated |ike a crine scene, the protocol
would be to treat it Ilike any other investigation. He
shared that once the investigation was witten up it would
be reviewed by the Ofice of Special Prosecutions; if there
was any indication that the officer had used inappropriate
force, that office would evaluate the case and nmake a
determination as to whether <crimnal charges should be
filed against the offending officer. He related that if all
i ndi cations showed that training skills and situations were
justifiable then the Ofice of Special Prosecutions would
clear the officer of the use of deadly force. He believed
that the same protocol would apply to VPSGCs.

2:21: 54 PM

M. Arlow spoke to the selection of VPSGCs for the pilot
program He stated that the issue had been under discussion
for sonme time. He explained that VPSOs would be selected
from particular regions and that it was al ready known which

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



regions would be good candidates. He said that the
psychol ogi cal evaluation would take priority and anyone who
did not pass the evaluation would not continue on to the
training in Sitka.

2:23:21 PM

Representative Costello asked whether a village VPSO that
did not pass the psychological evaluation to carry a
firearmwould | ose their job altogether.

M. Arlow replied that a VPSO would not be dismssed if
they failed to be able to carry a firearm He clarified
that the VPSO would sinply not be able to participate in
t he program

2:24: 28 PM

Co-Chair Austerman queried the difference between the
psychol ogi cal tests for a VPSO versus the test for a VPSO
who would carry a firearm

M. Arlow replied that he did not know the difference
between the two tests. He thought a psychologist could
provi de a nore accurate understanding of the process.

Co-Chair Austerman asserted that the situation sounded |ike
a doubl e st andard.

2:26: 22 PM

Representative Gara asked about the goal of adding 15 VPSCs
each year for the next 10 years. He opined that only 16 had
been added in the past 5 years He wondered why the
screening programwas a pil ot program

Representative Edgnon responded that there were currently
29 vacant positions. He thought that the pilot screening
program spoke to the careful steps taken by the departnment
and non-profits in executing the program He stated that
candidates would be carefully screened and would nost
likely be candidates that had been VPSGs for sonme tinme. He
stressed that this would be a fundanental change for the
majority of all VPSCs.

2:28:52 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



Co- Chair Austerman asked if Captain Arlow was in charge of
the VPSO for the troopers.

Captain Arlow replied yes. He furthered that he had
overseen the statew de VPSO program for the past 8 years.

Representative Minoz queried the current pay to VPSGCs and
what the departnment's intentions were to increase pay with
addi tional training.

Captain Arlow stated that the VPSO salary was good. He
stated that the departnment did not plan to increase the
salary with the introduction of firearns.

2:30:17 PM

Captain Arlow stated that the VPSO program was a
| ongst andi ng 40 year program without firearns. He furthered
that the departnment wanted to be diligent that when an
armed VPSO was introduced to a community, the comunity was
accepting. He said that the program was a pilot program
with the focus of starting off small so that the community
reaction could be evaluated. He noted that VPSOs were often
the only |law enforcenment presence in rural comunities. He
spoke to the Sitka Acadeny as the primary training
| ocation. He said that the VPSO firearm training would be
the exact sane training that any municipal police officer
or state trooper wuld receive. He pointed out to the
committee that the duties of a state trooper and a VPSO
were different; a VPSO was a public safety servant wth
many ot her conponents, VPSOs were often first responders to
scenes before troopers. He stressed that nore extensive
training went into training a trooper than a VPSO He
hi ghl i ghted several of the differences:

e VPSOs received 88 hours of scenario based training,
troopers and mnunici pal officers received 280 hours.

e VPSGs received 8 hours of search and seizure training,
troopers received 16 hours.

e VPSGs studied 36 hours of elenents of |aw, troopers
recei ved 58 hours.

Captain Arlow relayed that both VPSOs and troopers were
trained on the sane elenents, but troopers were trained
nore extensively. He said that this was because VPSGCs woul d
primarily deal with m sdenmeanor cases and troopers handl ed
hom ci de and hi gh profil e cases.

House Fi nance Committee 7 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



2:34:45 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about victims rights training.

Captain Arlow responded that the topic would be touched on
but that it would be enhanced during field training.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked whether he was aware of the
constitutional wvictinms' right anmendnment. He discussed the
i nportance of the issue.

Co-Chair Austerman asked about the Sitka training for
VPSCs. He understood that there had been a shortage of
VPSOCs. He wondered if the VPSO would automatically receive
firearmtraining at the acadeny.

Captain Arlow responded that the departnent intended to
bring on future applicants that would be able to qualify
for the firearm conponent.

Representative Gara asked whether VPSO received ful
training on how to respond to homcides, rapes, and
assaul ts.

Captain Arlow clarified that the crines were not different
in rural areas versus urban areas, but that the VPSO
training would have less training for crinmes that were not
traditionally seen in rural Al aska. He said that the crines
that would be trained on, specific to rural Al aska, were
donmestic violence and assault. He relayed that VPSO woul d
not investigate the nore conplex crines.

Representative Gara thought that the disparity in training
was significant.

Captain Arlow thought that the additional hours of training
for VPSOs woul d be firearns and scenari o based training.

2:41: 31 PM

Representative Edgnon interjected that iif there was a
felony situation the VPSO would secure and protect the
scene and i medi ately contact the oversight trooper.

Captain Arlow noted from experience that many people in | aw

enforcement were hoping to use firearns. The program had
been successful. He thought that the firearns would bring

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



in a different caliber of applicants and alleviate
t urnover.

2:43:38 PM

Representative Gara asked whether the VPSO training would
i ncl ude navi gati ng hostage or suicide situations.

Captain Arlow responded yes. He stated that the current
acadeny provided training to deescalate those Kkind of
situations; the courses that were believed to be valuable
to a trooper would be adm nistered to a VPSQO

Representative Gara wondered whether VPSGCs would Dbe
informed on the work done by the Violent Crine Conpensation
Boar d.

Captain Arlow replied that VPSOs received training that
i ncl uded i nformation about the board.

Co-Chair Stoltze added that there was a prepared panphl et
offered by the Ofice of Victims Rights.

2:46:59 PM

JOE MASTERS, FORMER COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
SAFETY, testified in favor of the legislation. He noted
that the sponsors had laid out a sinple change that would
require the Departnent of Public Safety to nove forward

with appropriate regulations to assure that VPSOs, if
communities agreed, have the ability to be arnmed. He did
not believe that the bill dimnished the statutory or

regul atory authority held by the comm ssioner to establish
the mninmum training and certification level. He declared
that he had a firm understanding of the job, as it was his
first position with the departnment. He believed that the
proper tools should be available to VPSOs in order to
defend thenselves should the need arise. He stated that
early iterations of the program had allowed for VPSOGs in
comunities with liability insurance to carry firearnms, a
practice that ended in the md-1980s. He said that nost
enpl oyers today were inclined to take on the additional
liability to assure that the VPSGCs in their conmunities
were properly arnmed. He shared that he used to be a trainer
at the acadeny in Sitka and that one of his duties was to
conduct firearns training. He spoke of a program from the
early 1990s, the VPSO Muinicipal Police Acadeny (MPA)

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



Transition, which provided additional training to selected
VPSCs that net police standard certification |evels and
included firearns training. He relayed that in his
experience there was no nore difficulty in training VPSGs
in the use of firearnms than any other nunicipal police
of ficer or trooper.

2:53:46 PM

M. Msters relayed that VPSO training should include
training for the task of carrying a firearm so that they
could do it safely, which did not nmean that the training
had to be on the sane level at a trooper. He noted that
security officers around the state were able to carry
firearns w thout acadeny training. He asserted that there
was W de support for the legislation because it was the
right thing to do.

2:55: 09 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze asked whether the departnent had supported
the legislation when M. Msters was conm ssioner. M.
Masters replied yes. Co-Chair Stoltze asked whether M.
Masters had changed his mnd since becomng a private
citizen. M. Masters replied no. M. Masters replied that
he endeavored to protect the citizens of Alaska. Co-Chair
Stoltze asked if M. Msters had becone nore assertive in
his support since becomng a private citizen. M. Masters
said yes. He noted that during his time as comm ssioner he
had started the process of a regulations change, which was
currently still underway.

2:57: 43 PM

Representative Gara asked whether VPSO s were trained in
preserving evidence.

M. Msters replied that +the difference was between
i medi ately responding to an incident that occurred in a
comunity, and then continuing the initial response into a
prol onged investigative process. He said that in the
situation of a felony crine the VPSO would nost |ikely be
the first responder and were appropriately trained in that
regard. He relayed that VPSGs did not receive all of the
training required to conplete the investigative processes.
He stated that VPSOs received training on what |evel was
the appropriate use of force against individuals that were

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



a danger to thenmselves or others. He added that deadly
force training was also adm nistered but did not involve
t he use of firearns.

3:01: 34 PM

JAVES HOELSCHER, SELF, HOOPER BAY, testified that he
started as a village police officer in 1994, and had since
received his certified police officer certificate. He said
that in 2009 he had applied to be a VPSO and was hired and
stationed in Hooper Bay. He relayed that famlies worried a
great deal when sending their |oved ones out as VPSGs, but
that the worry was | essened when the officer was arned. He
said that the stress that the job puts on famlies can make
officers wonder if the job is worth the worry, but he
believed that working the job was the best way he could
serve his community. He stated that positions would be nore
easily filled by higher caliber applicants, and that
retention and longevity nunmbers would increase, if VPSGCs
could carry guns

3:06: 51 PM

M. Hoel scher testified that he worked in a community where
| aw enforcenment was what the community expected of him He
stated that areas nore exposed to danger saw higher
turnover rates for VPSOs, Hooper Bay had seen 7 VPSGs in
the past 20 years. He believed that if the bill were to
pass it would result in an increase in scenario based
training for VPSCs. He related that all VPSGs received
training in use of force situations. He comunicated that
VPSCs were currently unarned and that the ability to carry
a firearm would serve as a deterrent to keep larger crines
from happeni ng.

3:11: 44 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Representati ve Edgnon thanked the chairman for the latitude
given to the discussion. He noted that over the 40 year
hi story of the program there had been 2 VPSO fatalities,
both in Bristol Bay.

HB 199 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.
3:14: 53 PM

House Fi nance Committee 11 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



AT EASE

3:18: 15 PM
RECONVENED

#hb32
HOUSE BI LL NO. 32

"An Act providing for the issuance of one business
license for multiple Iines of business; and providing
for reissuance of a business license to correct a
m stake on the license."

3:18: 26 PM

Vice-Chair Neuman MOVED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute for HB 32, Wrk Draft 28-LS0192\R (Martin
2/ 20/ 14). Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for discussion.

DANI EL CGEORGE, STAFF, CO CHAIR STOLTZE, testified that
t hroughout the bill the term “lines of business” has been
repl aced with “trades, servi ces, pr of essi ons, or
activities.” The change could be on Page 1, |line 1; Page 1,
line 8, Page 1, line 12; Page 2, |line 3 and 4; Page 2, line
21 and 25. He said that the CS included the addition of
Section 4, Page 2, lines 14 through 17, which added the
statutory definition of "lines of business” wthin the
definitions of the Business Licensing Act.

Co-Chair Stoltze interjected that the changes had been nmade
in consort with the sponsor and the Departnment of Conmerce,
Communi ty and Econom ¢ Devel oprent.

M. George agreed.

Representative Costello stated that the CS was in direct
response to a Iline of questions brought by Co-Chair
Austerman at a previous hearing.

Representative Guttenberg asked whether the definition was
new or if it could be found el sewhere in statute.

M. Ceorge replied that the words “trades, services,
professions, or activities” were utilized wthin the
definition in AS 43.71.10.001, but was not within the bil
itself. It was nmeant to clarify a |line of business.

3:.22:29 PM

House Fi nance Committee 12 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



Representative Guttenberg understood that defining |ines of
business as trades and services allowed the departnent to
better define them based on one licensing practice.

M. Ceorge deferred to the departnent or the sponsor.

CHARLES GUI NCHARD, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE COSTELLOQ,
explained that the definition of business had been pulled
from existing statute. He understood that the departnent
interpreted it as a direct correlation to the federal NAICS
codes.

3:24:55 PM
Representative Quttenberg requested assurances that there
were not two versions of the neaning of "lines of
busi ness. "

M. Quinchard replied that the intent of that change was to
have the definition of the word "business" work together

with the definition of "line of business.” He said that the
bill defined business as an entity that may acconplish
various different things, whereas the definition of "line

of business" would be any one particular thing done by the
busi ness.

Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being no
further objection CS was adopt ed.

Representative Costello stated that the list of the
business that would be affected had been provided to
commttee nenbers. She noted that the fiscal note reflected
the need for the admnistrative work. She noted that there
would be a loss to the state of $37,500, which she believed
woul d be better managed by small business owners rather
t han t he governnent.

Vice-Chair Neuman MOVED to REPORT HB 32 out of commttee
wi th individual reconmendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note(s). There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

CsHB 32 (FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with one new fiscal inpact note by
the Depart nent of Conmer ce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent .

Co-Chair Stoltze di scussed housekeepi ng.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



#
ADJ QURNVENT

3:29: 27 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:29 p.m

House Fi nance Committee 14 02/ 24/ 14 1:53 P. M



